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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited (the
“ Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit and other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.   

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

 Other Information  

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director’s report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements  

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal  financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
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we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.  

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.  

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B”.  

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its 
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements. 
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b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company 

d) (i)  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall: 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company; or  

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall:  

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or  

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material misstatement. 

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:  

The Company being a private limited company, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act is not 
applicable. 

 

 
For B S R & Co. LLP  

Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No. 101248W / W-100022 

 
 
 
 
 

Place: Mumbai Glenn D’Souza 
Date: 1 June 2022 Membership No. 112554 

                                             ICAI UDIN: 22112554AKCIKE9753 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements of STT Global Data 
Centres India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022. 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 

(i)         (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.  

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of 
physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and 
equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with 
this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our 
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other 
than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are 
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the 
name of the Company, except for the following which are not held in the name of the 
Company: 

 

Description 
of property 

Gross 
carrying 

value 
(INR in 
lakhs) 

Held in the 
name of 

Whether 
promoter, 
director or 

their 
relative or 
employee 

Period 
held- 

indicate 
range, 
where 

appropriate 

Reason for 
not being 

held in the 
name of the 
company. 

Also 
indicate if 
in dispute 

Building 
(Right-of-use 
assets) at 
BKC Mumbai 

10,104 Tata 
Communication 
Limited 

Promoter From  

1 July 2016 

Regulatory 
approval 
pending # 

Building 
(Right-of-use 
assets) at BKC 
Mumbai 

12,925 Tata 
Communication 
Limited 

Promoter From  

1 August 
2016 

Regulatory 
approval 
pending # 

Building 
(Right-of-use 
assets) at BKC 
Mumbai 

16,142 Tata 
Communication 
Limited 

Promoter From  

1 September 
2016 

Regulatory 
approval 
pending # 
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Description 
of property 

Gross 
carrying 

value 
(INR in 
lakhs) 

Held in the 
name of 

Whether 
promoter, 
director or 

their 
relative or 
employee 

Period 
held- 

indicate 
range, 
where 

appropriate 

Reason for 
not being 

held in the 
name of the 
company. 

Also 
indicate if 
in dispute 

Building 
(Property, 
plant and 
equipment) at 
Pune 

18,593 Tata 
Communication 
Limited 

Promoter From  

1 December 
2021 

Agreement is 
in process 

 # In case of these lease properties, the lessor and lessee have executed a lease agreement, 
however the same is not yet registered with the appropriate authorities, since certain 
regulatory approvals are awaited.   

(d)      According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant 
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.  

(e)        According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii)       (a)        The Company is a service company, primarily rendering data centre services comprising of 
co-location and managed services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.     

(b)      According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working 
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security 
of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly statements filed by the Company with such 
banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or 
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to 
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The 
Company has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other 
parties. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company. The Company has made investments in 
companies. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made are prima facie, not 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.  
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(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or 
provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services 
provided by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.  

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax 
and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have 
been subsumed into GST. According to the information and explanations given to us and on 
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted 
/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Services Tax, Provident fund, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or other statutory dues have 
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. 

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Employees' State 
Insurance and Cess. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or other 
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and 
Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or other statutory dues, which 
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed 
any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.  

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to banks. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.  

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 
of the balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have 
been used for long-term purposes by the company.  

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture 
(as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) 
and Clause 3(ix)(f) are not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the 
year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined 
in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 
(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated 
by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our 
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of 
its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the 
period under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act, are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.  

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended).  Accordingly, the requirements 
of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is 
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other 
than ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.  
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(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred the unspent amount to a 
Special Account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in 
compliance with Section 135(6) of the said Act. 

 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 
 
 
 
 

Glenn D’Souza 
Place: Mumbai Partner 
Date: 1 June 2022 Membership No: 112554 

ICAI UDIN: 22112554AKCIKE9753 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 
  
Opinion 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of STT Global Data 
Centres India Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, 
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (the “Guidance Note”). 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Act”). 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial 
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 
 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 
 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 

 
For B S R & Co LLP  

Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.101248W/W – 100022 

 
 
 
 

Glenn D’Souza 
Place: Mumbai  Partner 
Date: 1 June 2022 Membership No. 112554 

UDIN: 22112554AKCIKE9753 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

Currency in Indian Rupees
 in lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 284,196.18                     188,083.04               
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 9,475.60                         41,768.43                 
(c) Right-of-use assets 34 144,515.91                     119,622.88               
(d) Other intangible assets 4 637.50                           637.06                      
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investments 12 2,925.00                         1,950.00                   
(ii) Other financial assets 5 5,911.81                         5,726.88                   

(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 -                                 4,593.56                   
(g) Income tax assets (net) 6,929.71                         5,896.08                   
(h) Contract assets 7A 2,378.89                         7,592.51                   
(i) Other non-current assets 8A 4,926.42                         18,132.80                 

Total non-current assets 461,897.02                     394,003.24               

2 Current assets
(a) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 8,529.99                         7,470.73                   
(ii) Unbilled receivables 5,822.71                         5,510.69                   
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 33,410.72                       22,478.64                 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 11 97.05                             6,051.43                   

(b) Income tax assets (net) 6,434.36                         7,812.07                   
(c) Contract assets 7B 48.61                             355.81                      
(d) Other current assets 8B 11,098.99                       5,967.22                   

Total current assets 65,442.43                       55,646.59                 

Total assets 527,339.45                     449,649.83               

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity

(a) Equity share capital 13 1.33                               1.16                          
(b) Other equity 14 147,292.47                     66,701.91                 

Total equity 147,293.80                     66,703.07                 

II Liabilities
1 Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15A 173,614.05                     161,687.62               
(ii) Lease liabilities 34 126,003.08                     129,150.30               
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16A 1,090.68                         964.75                      

(b) Provisions 17A 391.60                           373.94                      
(c) Deferred tax Liability (Net) 6 1,041.35                         -                           
(d) Contract liabilities 7A 1,610.96                         1,851.35                   

Total non-current liabilities 303,751.72                     294,027.96               

2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15B 17,073.58                       14,733.58                 
(ii) Lease liabilities 34 5,835.81                         4,149.52                   
(iii) Trade payables 19
 1. Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 98.73                             1,296.85                   
 2. Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 19,913.62                       24,649.15                 
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16B 24,549.76                       26,357.50                 

(b) Contract liabilities 7B 7,419.49                         3,774.50                   
(c) Other current liabilities 18 1,376.08                         1,394.39                   
(d) Provisions 17B 26.86                             12,563.31                 

Total current liabilities 76,293.93                       88,918.80                 

Total equity and liabilities 527,339.45                     449,649.83               

Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 43

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants  STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited
Firm's Registration no: 101248W/W-100022

Glenn D'souza
Partner Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Membership no. : 112554 Chief Executive Officer Director

DIN : 07554875

Kabir Ahmed Shakir Bimal Khandelwal
Director Chief Financial officer
DIN : 03584898

Dated: 1 June 2022 Dated: 1 June 2022

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2022
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Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Currency in Indian Rupees
 in lakhs

 For the year ended  For the year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

I Revenue from operations 20 145,475.34                 117,504.15               
II Other income 21 2,451.80                     2,088.50                   
III Total Income (I + II) 147,927.14                 119,592.65               

IV EXPENSES:
Operating and other expenses 22 69,411.36                   60,476.51                 
Employee benefits expense 23 12,260.17                   9,066.08                   
Finance costs 24 25,688.95                   23,454.05                 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 31,884.08                   23,149.91                 
Total Expenses 139,244.56                 116,146.55               

V Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 8,682.58                     3,446.10                   

VI Exceptional Items 17B (11,922.97)                 12,540.58                 

VII Profit / (Loss) before tax (V-VI) 20,605.55                   (9,094.48)                 

VIII Tax expense 26
(a) Current tax (400.41)                      (322.09)                    
(b) Deferred tax 5,636.75                     (1,905.47)                 

5,236.34                     (2,227.56)

IX Profit / (Loss) for the year (VII - VIII) 15,369.21                   (6,866.92)                 

X Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined employee benefit plan (7.33)                          (7.96)                        
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be subsequently reclassified to 
statement of profit and loss

1.84                            2.00                          

Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (5.49)                          (5.96)                        

XI Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (IX + X) 15,363.72                   (6,872.88)                 

Earnings per share 

Basic and diluted (of  10 each) 28 124,115.40                 (59,884.19)               

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 43

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants  STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited
Firm's Registration  no: 101248W/W-100022

Glenn D'souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Chief Executive Officer Director

Membership No: 112554 DIN : 07554875

Kabir Ahmed Shakir Bimal Khandelwal
Director Chief Financial officer
DIN : 03584898

Dated: 1 June 2022 Dated: 1 June 2022
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Currency in Indian Rupees

A Equity share capital
 in lakhs

Note No.of Shares Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2020 11,150                1.12                    

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -                      -                      

Restated balance as at 1 April 2020 11,150                1.12                    

Changes in equity share capital during the year 13 450                     0.04                    

Balance as at 31 March 2021 11,600                1.16                    

Balance as at 1 April 2021 11,600                1.16                    

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -                      -                      

Restated balance as at 1 April 2021 11,600                1.16                    

Changes in equity share capital during the year 13 1,700                  0.17                    

Balance as at 31 March 2022 13,300                1.33                    

B Changes in other equity
 in lakhs

Note

 Other comprehensive 
income 

 Securities 
premium 

 General reserve  Retained earnings 
 Remeasurement of 
defined benefit plan 

Balances as at 1 April 2020 14 32,444.32           8,750.00             19,248.24                    (63.83)                             60,378.73                          

Profit/(Loss) for the year -                      -                      (6,866.92)                    -                                  (6,866.92)

Right issue of equity shares 13,196.06           -                      -                              -                                  13,196.06                          

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -                      -                      -                              (7.96)                               (7.96)                                  

Tax impact on above -                      -                      -                              2.00                                2.00                                   

Balance as at 31 March 2021 45,640.38           8,750.00             12,381.32                    (69.79)                             66,701.91                          

Balance as at 1 April 2021 -                           45,640.38           8,750.00             12,381.32                    (69.79)                             66,701.91                          

Profit/(Loss) for the year -                      -                      15,369.21                    -                                  15,369.21                          

Right issue of equity shares -                           65,226.84           -                      -                              -                                  65,226.84                          

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -                      -                      -                              (7.33)                               (7.33)                                  

Tax impact on above -                      -                      -                              1.84                                1.84                                   

Balance as at 31 March 2022 -                           110,867.22         8,750.00             27,750.53                    (75.28)                             147,292.47                        

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Securities premium 

(b) General reserve 

(c) Retained earnings 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 43

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants  STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited
Firm's Registration  no: 101248W/W-100022

Glenn D'souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director
Membership no. : 112554 DIN : 07554875

Kabir Ahmed Shakir Bimal Khandelwal
Director Chief Financial officer
DIN : 03584898

Dated: 1 June 2022 Dated: 1 June 2022

This reserve represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Company as on the balance sheet date.

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is 
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be 
reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Currency in Indian Rupees

 For the year ended  For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit / (loss) before tax 20,605.55                  (9,094.48)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31,884.08                  23,149.91                  
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) (1,305.42) (509.37)
Finance costs 25,688.95 23,454.04                  
Exceptional items (11,922.97)                12,540.58
Unwinding of discount on security deposits                         (70.37)                         (65.38)
Impairment loss recognised /(reversed) under expected credit loss model 605.80                       (343.41)                     
Interest on fixed deposits (978.38) (818.81)
Operating profit before working capital changes 64,507.24                  48,313.08

Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables (1,665.06) 2,622.49
Other financial assets (426.58) (3,118.23)
Contract assets 5,520.83 282.67                       
Other assets (5,992.44) 1,007.94                    
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (5,933.65) (1,294.38)                  
Other financial liabilities 3,254.86 448.09                       
Contract liabilities 3,404.60 3,022.48                    
Employee benefit obligations (603.15) 148.61                       
Other liabilities (18.32) 159.63                       
Cash generated from operations 62,048.33 51,592.38                  
Income tax paid (net of refunds) 744.49                       2,043.51
Net Cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 62,792.82                  53,635.89

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (108,359.84) (52,359.35)                
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 1,720.63                    609.63                       
Purchase of non-current investments (975.00)                     (1,950.00)                  
(Increase)/ decrease in earmarked funds 5,954.37                    (6,051.43)                  
Interest received on fixed deposits 929.64                       883.34                       
Net Cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) (100,730.20) (58,867.81)                

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net of arrangement fees) 29,000.00                  39,000.00                  
Repayment of long term borrowings (14,838.00) (14,478.00)                
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (Refer note 13) 65,227.01                  13,196.10                  
Repayment of lease liabilities (5,217.16) (4,427.93)                  
Finance cost paid towards lease liabilities (10,585.67) (9,762.31)                  
Finance cost paid (14,716.72) (13,835.81)                
Net Cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 48,869.46                  9,692.05                    

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 10,932.08 4,460.13                    

22,478.64                  18,018.51

33,410.72                  22,478.64

Note: Figures in brackets represent outflows.

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activity
Particulars Rupee loan from banks  Lease liabilities  Equity share capital 

(Incl Sec. Premium) 
Interest accrued but not 

due
Balance as at 1 April 2021 176,421.20                       133,299.82                       45,641.54                         388.17

Cash flow movement (Refer above) 14,162.00                         (15,802.83)                        65,227.01                         (14,716.72)                        

Expenses as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer note 24) 11,112.71                         -                                   14,524.52                          

Non cash/other adjustments:

Amortisation of arrangment fees 104.43                              -                                   (104.43)                             

Lease liabilities recognised during the year 3,229.19                           -                                   

Finance cost capitalised -                                   -                                   341.36                              

Balance as at 31 March 2022 190,687.63                       131,838.89                       110,868.55                       432.90                              

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants  STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited
Firm's Registration  no: 101248W/W-100022

Glenn D'souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director
Membership No: 112554 DIN : 07554875

Kabir Ahmed Shakir Bimal Khandelwal
Director Chief Financial officer
DIN : 03584898

Dated: 1 June 2022 Dated: 1 June 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 10 Cash and cash equivalents)

  in lakhs 
Particulars
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs

1. Corporate information  

STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited (formerly known as Tata Communications 
Data Centers Private Limited) (�the Company�) was incorporated in India on 13 December 
2007. The Company was originally incorporated with the name S & A Internet Services 
Private Limited which was changed to Tata Communications Data Centers Private Limited on 
27 February 2014 and then to STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited on 11 April 
2017 (vide SRN G39621719). The Company is engaged in the business of providing Data 
center service which include colocation, managed hosting, infrastructure and related services. 

The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is at 5th Floor, Tower B, Plot No. 
C21 & C36, �G� Block, Bandra Kurla Complex Mumbai � 400098.Corporate identification 
number: U74999MH2007PTC176737. 

The Company is a subsidiary of STT India DC Pte. Ltd. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

a. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (referred to as �Ind AS�) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 
2013, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to 
time. 

b. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain 
financial assets, liabilities and defined benefit plans measured at fair value or amortised cost 
(Refer note 2(s) below). Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration 
given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (� �) and all 
values are rounded to the nearest lakh (00,000), except when otherwise indicated. 

The Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or 
loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expense 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 
and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers all highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents. 

c. Current and non-current classification 

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current. 

Assets 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in the Company�s 
normal operating cycle; 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

c. Current and non-current classification (Continued) 

Assets (Continued) 

 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

 it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the Balance Sheet date; or  

 it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liability for at least twelve months after the Balance Sheet date. 

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. 

All other assets are classified as non-current.   

Liabilities 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 it is expected to be settled in the Company�s normal operating cycle; 

 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the Balance Sheet date; or 

 the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 
at least twelve months after the Balance Sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the 
option of the counter party, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do 
not affect its classification. 

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company�s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with the 
Schedule III to the Act. 

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing 
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating 
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current � non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities. 

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 
affected in future periods. 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Company�s accounting policies, management has made the 
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements: 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 
 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (Continued) 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured 
using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken 
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement 
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as 
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could 
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.  

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in note 
31 � Financial instruments. 

Leases  

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of 
Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses 
significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the 
applicable discount rate. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The 
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone 
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are 
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they 
occur. 

Defined benefit plans 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value 
of such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 
at each reporting date. 

Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

The Company reviews the useful life of assets at the end of each reporting period. This 
reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods. 
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (Continued) 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future 
cash flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future 
operating results and growth rate and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. 
The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The discount rate used for 
the CGU�s represent the weighted average cost of capital based on the historical market returns 
of comparable companies. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities  

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect 
of which a reliable estimate can be made.  

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation 
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities 
are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting 
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

Income taxes 

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including 
the amount expected to be paid or recovered in connection with uncertain tax positions. 

Deferred tax: Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent it is considered probable 
that those assets will be recoverable. This involves an assessment of when those deferred tax 
assets are likely to reverse, and a judgement as to whether or not there will be sufficient taxable 
profits available to offset the tax assets when they do reverse. This requires assumptions 
regarding future profitability and is therefore inherently uncertain. To the extent assumptions 
regarding future profitability change, there can be an increase or decrease in the level of 
deferred tax assets recognized that can result in a charge or credit in the period in which the 
change occurs. 

Leases 

Determination of lease term 

Ind AS 116 Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period 
of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the option is reasonably 
certain to be exercised. The Company makes assessment on the expected lease term on lease 
by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend 
or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company  
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STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

d. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (Continued) 

Leases (Continued) 

considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease 
term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the underlying asset to 
the Company�s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the 
availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure 
that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. 

Discount rate 

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease 
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.    

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19: 

In view of the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic and economic forecasts, the Management 
has evaluated the impact on the financial statements and made appropriate adjustment where 
necessary. In assessing the recoverability of its assets including receivables and unbilled 
receivables, the Company has considered internal and external information upto the date of 
approval of these financial statements including economic forecasts. The Company has 
performed analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future 
economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. 
However, the actual impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ 
from that estimated and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes 
to future economic conditions. 

e. Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash comprises cash on hand. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk 
of changes in value. 

f. Property, plant and equipment  

i. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less 
accumulated depreciation/ amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes 
inward freight, duties, taxes and all incidental expenses incurred for making the asset 
ready for its intended use.  
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

ii. Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under 
installation/ under development as at the Balance Sheet date are carried at cost, 
comprising direct cost, directly attributable cost including capitalised borrowing cost. 

The depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of the property, plant 
and equipment or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value (wherever 
applicable). Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-
line method as per the estimated useful lives. The asset�s residual values, estimated useful 
lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and any change in 
estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.  
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

f. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 

iii. Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: 

Property, plant and equipment Estimated useful 
lives w.e.f  1 April 

2018 

Note reference 
below 

Plant and machinery   

- Network equipment and components 3 to 8 years Note 3 

- Electrical equipment and installations  Note 1 

- Power Cables, power distribution boards, chillers 
and other electrical installation 

15 years Note 2 

- DG Set and transformers 20 years Note 2 

- LT and HT Panels 18 years Note 2 

- HVAC and low side work 12 years Note 2 

- Batteries 5 years Note 2 

- UPS,PAC and Cannopy 10 years Note 1 

- Other plant and machinery 15 years Note 1 

Office equipment - Integrated building management systems 15 years Note 2 

Leasehold improvements Asset life or lease 
period whichever 

is less 

Note 1 

Building   

- RCC structure 60 years Note 1 

- Temporary structures 3 years Note 1 

Furniture and fixtures 10 years Note 1 

Office equipment 5 years Note 1 

Computers   

- End user devices like laptops and desktop 3 years Note 1 

- Server and network 6 years Note 1 

1. On the above categories of assets, the depreciation has been provided as per useful 
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

2. The Company conducted a review of useful life of all its Property, Plant and 
Equipment. Based on technical advice, there was no change in expected useful 
life of the assets.  

3. In these cases, the lives of the assets are other than the prescribed lives in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013. The lives of the assets have been assessed based 
on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated 
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of 
replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and 
maintenance support etc. 

iv. Property, plant and equipment are derecognised from financial statement, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of 
property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, 
plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of 
occurrence. 
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Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

g. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably.   

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 
life are reviewed at least at the end of each financial period. Changes in the expected useful 
life are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows: 

Software 3 to 6 years 

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 

h. Impairment of non- financial asset 

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units (�CGU�) at each Balance Sheet date are 
reviewed for impairment, if any indication of impairment exists. The following intangible 
assets are tested for impairment at the end of each financial year even if there is no indication 
that the asset is impaired:  

i. an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and 

ii. an intangible asset with indefinite useful lives. 

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, impairment is 
recognised for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case 
any impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a 
revaluation reserve is available for that asset. 

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and the value in use. Value in 
use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an 
appropriate discount factor.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

h. Impairment of non- financial asset (Continued) 

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued 
asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of 
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount 
was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets such 
reversal is not recognised. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent 
market transactions are taken into account.  

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, 
which are prepared separately for the Company as a CGU. These budgets and forecast 
calculations generally cover a significant period. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate 
is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the significant period. 

i. Leases 

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a contract 
as per the requirement of Ind AS 116. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset; 
(ii) the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use 
of the asset throughout the period of use and (iii) the Company has right to direct the use of 
the asset..  

As a lessee 

The Company recognizes a right-of-use assets and a lease liability at the lease commencement 
date. The right-of-use assets is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount 
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove 
the underlying asset or to restore the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. 

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately 
from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to 
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component 
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end 
of the contract end date. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when 
it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.   
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i. Leases (Continued) 

As a lessee (Continued) 

The right-of-use assets is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use assets or the 
end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the 
same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for 
impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company�s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, 
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. For leases with 
reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either 
the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the 
portfolio as a whole. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

 fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;  

 variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date; 

 lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to 
exercise an extension option; and 

 penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change 
in Company�s assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination 
option. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to 
modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets and statement of profit and loss 
depending upon the nature of modification. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use assets has been reduced to zero.  

Lease liability is further bifurcated into current and non-current portion; and the right-of-use 
assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been 
classified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flow.  

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short 
term leases that have a lease term of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option 
and assets with low value leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with 
these leases as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease term. The related 
cash flows are classified as operating activities in the Statement of Cash Flow.  
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i. Leases (Continued) 

As a lessor 

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a 
finance lease or an operating lease.  

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset 
substantially vests with the lessor are classified as operating leases.  

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an asset are transferred from the Company to the lessee. As a part of this 
assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the 
major part of the economic life of the asset.  

Lease rental income from operating leases where the Company is lessor is recognised as 
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The initial direct costs relating to 
operating leases are recorded as expenses as they are incurred. 

j. Employee benefits 

Employee benefits include contribution to provident fund, gratuity fund, compensated 
absences and performance incentives. 

i. Short term employment benefits 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the period when 
the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences such as 
paid annual leave and performance incentives payable within 12 months.  

ii. Share based payment transactions 

The Company applies the Ind AS 102 on �Share based payments� issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (�ICAI�) to account for costs related to the 
Appreciation Unit Plan (AUP) and Restricted Stock Unit Plan (RSUP) units. The fair 
value of the amount payable to employees in respect of AUP and to directors in respect 
of RSUP, which are settled in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding 
increase in liabilities, over the period during which the employees and the directors  
become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is remeasured at each 
reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the AUPs and RSUPs. 
Any changes in the liability are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

iii. Post-employment benefits 

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as 
expenses when employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.  

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each 
Balance Sheet date, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional 
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the 
final obligation.   
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

j. Employee benefits (Continued) 

iii. Post-employment benefits (Continued) 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling 
(if applicable), excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit 
liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income 
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the period of plan amendment. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset.  

The Company recognises changes in service costs comprising of current service costs, 
past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements under 
employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net interest expense 
or income is recognised as part of finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.   

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, 
and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this 
calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and 
reductions in future contributions to the scheme. 

iv. Other long-term employee benefits 

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated 
absence and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on 
termination of employment. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur 
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the 
related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit 
obligations at the Balance Sheet date based on an actuarial valuation by an independent 
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The discount rates used for determining 
the present value of the obligations under the defined benefit plan are based on the 
market yields on government securities as at the Balance sheet date.  

k. Revenue recognition  

Income from operations consist of revenue from Data centre services comprising of co-
location and managed services. 

Revenue is recognized as per Ind AS 115 when a contract exists with the customer, measured 
based on the amount entitled to be received for the performance obligation and recognized 
when it satisfies its performance obligation (transfer of control) which may be either over time 
(service) or at a point in time (product). One-time charges for set up activities are amortised 
over the contract period on a straight-line basis.  

The Company recognizes revenue from co-location services which consists of space, power, 
cooling, physical security, storage, networking and one-time charges for set up activity. The 
Company also recognizes revenue from support services and managed services contracts. 

Page 686 of 747



STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

k. Revenue recognition (Continued) 

As the services rendered by the Company (and the value derived by the customer) is 
continuous over the term of the contract, revenue from co-location services is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the contract term. Revenue from support services and managed service 
contracts are recognised in the period in which the services are rendered. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for 
volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and 
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes 
collected from customers. Lease components of a contract, where applicable, are measured 
basis estimated sales price.  

Direct costs solely related to obtaining revenue contracts are capitalized as costs of obtaining 
a contract when they are incremental and if they are expected to be recovered. Contract costs 
are amortised over the contract period on a straight-line basis. 

The Company incurs commission cost that are solely incremental to obtaining contracts with 
customer that would not otherwise be incurred. 

Contract assets represents effect of straight lining of revenue of customers and hence the 
Company does not have the unconditional right to consideration. It also includes penalties, if 
any, accrued which are accounted of as a reduction from the transaction price over the period 
of the contract. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is 
pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required 
as per contractual terms. The Company recognises contract assets when there is an excess of 
revenue earned over billing on contract.  

A contract liability is recognised when the Company has an unconditional right to a payment 
before it transfers goods or services to customers. The billing schedules agreed with customers 
include periodic performance based payments. Invoices are payable within contractually 
agreed credit period. 

l. Other income 

Other income comprises of interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortised 
cost. Interest income is recorded on accrual basis. Interest income is included in other income 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

m. Taxation 

Current income tax 

i. Current tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961. 

ii. Provision for current income taxes and advance taxes paid in respect of the same 
jurisdiction are presented in the Balance Sheet after offsetting them on an assessment 
year basis. 
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m. Taxation (Continued) 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences at the 
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.   

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in 
other comprehensive income or in equity) is recognised outside the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to 
set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to 
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

n. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain investments, at 
fair value at each Balance Sheet date.  

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:  

 In the principal market for the asset or liability or 

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.  

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest.  

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.  
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n. Fair value measurement (Continued) 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:  

 Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

 Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices). 

 Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair 
values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions 
that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the 
same instrument nor are they based on available market data. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.  

o. Foreign currencies 

The Company�s financial statements are presented in , which is also the Company�s 
functional currency.  

Foreign currency transactions are converted into  at rates of exchange approximating those 
prevailing at the transaction dates or at the average exchange rate for the month in which the 
transaction occurs. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are outstanding as at the 
Balance Sheet date are translated to  at the closing rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date. 
Exchange differences on settlement of and restatement of foreign currency transactions are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

p. Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of any fee paid to the lender at the time of 
availing the borrowing. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not 
directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying 
assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / 
development of the qualifying asset up to the date when such asset is ready for its intended 
use are added to the cost of the assets. Where the funds used to finance a project, forms part 
of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using an applicable weighted 
average rate. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying 
assets is interrupted.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

q. Earnings per share  

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year.  

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for 
the year by the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares 
outstanding during the year, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. 

r. Investment in equity instrument 

Investment in equity instruments can either be classified as an investment in subsidiary, 
associate, joint venture or as a financial asset. 

All investments in equity instruments are evaluated for determining whether it qualifies as an 
investment in subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it 
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable return form its involvement with the entity and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power over entity.  

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence, but not control or 
joint control, over the financial and operating policies.  

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Company has joint control and has rights to 
the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its 
liabilities. 

s. Financial instruments 

Non � derivative financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured 
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on 
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. 

A. Financial assets 

i. Financial assets at amortised cost 

 Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial 
assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

s. Financial instruments (Continued) 

Non � derivative financial instruments (Continued) 

A. Financial assets(Continued) 

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding 
and by selling financial assets.  

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the 
Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in investments 
fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis 

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is 
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income 
on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are immediately recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

iv. Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a 
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from 
the Company�s Balance Sheet) when: 

 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset 
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a �pass-through� arrangement; and 
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset 

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred 
asset is measured at lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and 
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to 
repay. 
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s. Financial instruments (Continued) 

Non � derivative financial instruments (Continued) 

A. Financial assets (Continued) 

v. Impairment of financial assets  

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) 
model to the following: 

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost; 

 Financial assets measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive 
income; (except for FVOCI � Equity instruments) 

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount 
equal to: 

 the 12-month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from 
those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date) 

The Company follows �simplified approach� for recognition of impairment loss 
allowance on: 

 Trade receivables 

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit 
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at 
reporting date. 

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance 
on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its 
historically observed default and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At 
every reporting date, the historically observed rates are updated for changes, if 
any, in the forward-looking estimates.   

For assessing expected credit loss on a collective basis, financial assets have 
been grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics and basis of estimation 
may change during the course of time due to change in risk characteristics. 

B. Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

i. Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as 
described below:  

I. Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost on accrual basis. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

s. Financial instruments (Continued) 

Non � derivative financial instruments (Continued) 

B. Financial liabilities(Continued) 

i. Subsequent measurement(Continued) 

II. Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

ii. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported 
in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

t. Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (�MCA�) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. 
On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1 April 2022, as below: 

i. Ind AS 103 � Reference to Conceptual Framework 

 The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the 
acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet 
the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do 
not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not 
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

ii. Ind AS 16 � Proceeds before intended use 

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, 
plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the 
Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise 
such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect 
the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and 
equipment in its financial statements. 
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t. Recent accounting pronouncements (Continued) 

iii. Ind AS 37 � Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 

The amendments specify that that the �cost of fulfilling� a contract comprises the 
�costs that relate directly to the contract�. Costs that relate directly to a contract can 
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, 
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The 
amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the 
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

iv. Ind AS 109 � Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the �10 percent� 
test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The 
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 

v. Ind AS 106 � Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold 
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the 
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were 
described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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3. Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress (Continued)

 CWIP ageing schedule 
 (  in lakhs) 

As at 31 March 2022 

Particulars 
            Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

years 
Projects in progress 9,309.92 165.68 - - 9,475.60 

(  in lakhs) 
As at 31 March 2021 

Particulars 
          Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

Projects in progress    28,369.51 12,495.54 903.38                    -   41,768.43 

 
For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue, CWIP completion schedule is as 
follows: 

(  in lakhs) 
           As at 31 March 2022 

Particulars 
                            To be completed in 

Total Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

C4-DEL01-00001-01 3,077.09 -                    -                      -   3,077.09 
 

(  in lakhs) 

       As at 31 March 2021 

Particulars 
                         To be completed in 

Total Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More than 3 
years 

MAA01-00028 25,427.67 -                    -                      -   25,427.67 

MAA01-00000001 3,004.53                 -                     -                     -   3,004.53 

CSB Projects 1,780.51                 -                     -                     -   1,780.51 

H & H Projects 394.71                 -                     -                     -   394.71 

HYD01-00001 209.87                   -                     -                     -   209.87   

KOL01-00001 73.69                 -                     -                     -   73.69 
Total 30,890.98 - - - 30,890.98 
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4. Other intangible assets  
(  in lakhs) 

 Software  Total 
Cost 

Balance at 1 April 2020 655.33 655.33 
Additions 341.75 341.75
Balance at 31 March 2021 997.08 997.08 
Additions 235.24 235.24 
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,232.32 1,232.32 
   
Accumulated amortization 
Balance at 1 April 2020 248.76 248.76 
Amortisation for the year 111.26 111.26 
Balance at 31 March 2021 360.02 360.02 
Amortisation for the year 234.80 234.80 
Balance at 31 March 2022 594.82 594.82 
   
Carrying amount 
Balance at 31 March 2022 637.50 637.50 
Balance at 31 March 2021 637.06 637.06 

Intangible assets are subject to first charge to secure the loans availed from bank. Refer note 
15. 

The estimated amortisation for years subsequent to 31 March 2022 is as follows: 
     (  in lakhs) 

Year ending 31 March, Amortisation expense 

2023 231.57 

2024 209.42 

2025 105.16 
2026 73.91 
2027 15.50 
2028 1.94 

 637.50 

5. Other financial assets 
(  in lakhs) 

  As at 
31 March 2022 

As at 
31 March 2021 

 Considered good, unsecured � at amortised cost   
 Non-current   
 Security deposits    
 - Receivable from related parties (Refer note 33)  1,789.17 734.15 
 - Others 2,496.52 2,756.71 

 Total (A) 4,285.69 3,490.86 

 Advance to supplier (Refer note 15 & 35 (iii)) 2,699.85 2,699.85 
 Less: Loss allowance (Refer note 31 (d)) (1,073.73) (463.83) 

 Total (B) 1,626.12 2,236.02 

 Total (A+B) 5,911.81 5,726.88 

Other financial assets are subject to first charge to secure the loans availed from bank. Refer 
note 15.  
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6. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (net) 

Major components of deferred tax asset and liability consist of the following: 
                                                                                                                                                               (  in lakhs) 

 As at 
1 April 2021  

Recognised in 
Statement of 

Profit and Loss 
(net) 

Recognised in 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

As at 
31 March 2022 

Deferred tax assets 
arising out of timing 
differences on: 

    

Difference between 
accounting and tax 
depreciation / 
amortization 

(4,450.97) (3,649.86) - (8,100.83) 

Provision for doubtful 
trade receivables and 
advances 

328.15 152.46 - 480.61 

Provision for leave 
encashment 

61.75 11.03 - 72.78 

Provision for gratuity 46.98 (42.28) 1.84 6.54 

Provision for stamp duty 680.22 130.04 - 810.26 

Provision for license fee 3,156.21 (3,156.21) - - 

Expenditure disallowed 
u/s.40 (a) (ia) 

518.01 256.93 - 774.94 

Tax Losses* 518.05 (267.63) - 250.42 

Adjustment related to 
Ind AS 116  

3,681.95 886.57 - 4,568.52 

Others 109.63 (70.97) - 38.66 

Total deferred tax 
assets (A) 

4,649.98 (5,749.92) 1.84 (1,098.10) 

Deferred tax liability 
arising out of timing 
differences on: 

    

Adjustment related to 
Ind AS 115 

33.11 (112.83) - (79.72) 

Others 23.31 (0.34) - 22.97 

Total deferred tax 
liabilities (B) 

56.42 (113.17) - (56.75) 

Deferred tax 
assets/(liability) (net) 

4,593.56 (5,636.75) 1.84 (1,041.35) 

  
* The amount pertains to Deferred Tax on Unabsorbed Depreciation which can be carried 
forward indefinitely.  
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6. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (net) (Continued)
(  in lakhs) 

 As at 
1 April 2020  

Recognised in 
Statement of 

Profit and Loss 
(net)  

Recognised in 
other 

comprehensive 
income  

As at 
31 March 2021 

Deferred tax assets arising 
out of timing differences on: 

    

Difference between 
accounting and tax 
depreciation / amortisation 

(2,115.90) (2,335.07) - (4,450.97) 

Provision for doubtful trade 
receivables and advances 

414.57 (86.42) - 328.15 

Provision for leave 
encashment 

52.38 9.37 - 61.75 

Provision for gratuity 20.64 24.34 2.00 46.98 
Provision for stamp duty 368.56 311.66 - 680.22 
Provision for AUP/RSUP 168.73 (168.73) - - 
Provision for license fee - 3,156.21 - 3,156.21 
Expenditure disallowed 
u/s.40 (a) (ia) 

396.13 121.88 - 518.01 

Tax Losses* - 518.05 - 518.05 
Adjustment related to Ind AS 
116  

3,511.52 170.43 - 3,681.95 

Others 2.14 107.49 - 109.63 

Total deferred tax assets 
(A) 

2,818.77 1,829.21 2.00 4,649.98 

Deferred tax liability 
arising out of timing 
differences on: 

    

Adjustment related to Ind AS 
115 

108.53 (75.42) - 33.11 

Others 24.16 (0.85) - 23.31 

Total deferred tax 
liabilities (B) 

132.69 (76.27) - 56.42 

Deferred tax assets (net) 2,686.08 1,905.48 2.00 4,593.56 

7.  Contract assets and contract liabilities  
(  in lakhs)

   As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

A Non-current     
 Contract assets   2,378.89 7,592.51 
 Loss allowance   - - 

 Total contract assets   2,378.89 7,592.51 
     

 Total contract liabilities   1,610.96 1,851.35 
     

B Current     
 Contract assets   48.61 355.81 
 Loss allowance   - - 

 Total contract assets   48.61 355.81 
     

 Total contract liabilities   7,419.49 3,774.50 
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7.  Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued) 

Contract assets are subject to first charge to secure the loans availed from bank. Refer note 
15.  

Movement of contract assets and contract liabilities: 

The following table reflects the movement of contract assets and contract liabilities: 
(  in lakhs) 

As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

A Changes in contract assets: 
 
Balance at the beginning of the year   

 
7,948.32 

 
8,230.99 

 Contract assets recognized, net of reclassification to   
 Receivables (5,520.82) (282.67) 

 Balance at the end of the year 2,427.50 7,948.32 

  
As at  

31 March 2022 
As at  

31 March 2021 
B Changes in contract liability:  

 
  

 Balance at the beginning of the year  5,625.85 2,603.37 
Revenue recognized from prior year balance  
Cash received in advance and not recognized as revenue 

(3,774.50) 
               7,179.10 

(1,719.56) 
4,742.04 

 

 Balance at the end of the year 9,030.45 5,625.85 
  

8. Other assets 
(  in lakhs) 

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

Unsecured, considered good   
A Non-current (Refer note 15) 

 
  

a. Capital advances  3,865.89 17,981.66 
b. Prepaid expenses 513.86   -  
c. Asset recognised from cost to obtain contracts (#)  431.41   35.88  
d. Balance with government authorities 115.26 115.26 

Total (A) 4,926.42 18,132.80 

  
B Current (Refer note 15)   
a. Prepaid expenses  627.05   716.75  
b. Indirect taxes recoverable 9,907.54   5,013.29  
c. Advance to contractors and vendors  0.13   11.88  
d. Interest receivable  81.42   32.68  
e. Asset recognised from cost to obtain contracts (#) 105.73   83.09  
f. Others  377.12   109.53  

Total (B) 11,098.99 5,967.22 

  

Total (A) + (B) 16,025.41 24,100.02 
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8. Other assets (Continued)

(#) On adoption of Ind AS 115, the Company recognised an asset in relation to cost incurred 
to obtain contracts. The asset is amortised on a straight line basis over the contract period. 
Applying the practical expedient in paragraph 94 of Ind AS 115, the Company recognises the 
incremental costs of obtaining contracts as an expense when incurred if the amortisation 
period of the assets that the Company otherwise would have recognised is one year or less. 

There was no impairment loss in relation to the costs capitalised. 
(  in lakhs) 

 As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

Changes in contract cost:  
 

  

Balance at the beginning of the year  118.97 194.29 
Contract cost deferred during the year 
Amortization of contract cost 

494.79 
(76.62) 

27.21 
  (102.53) 

Balance at the end of year 537.14 118.97 

9. Trade Receivables 
                                                                                                                                                                               (  in lakhs) 

 As at 31 March 2022 

Particulars  

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Not Due 

Less 
than 6 

months 

6 
months-

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More 
than 3 
years Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- considered good 7,390.84 1,139.15 - - - - 8,529.99 
(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk 

 
- 11.74 68.15 2.48 1.09 12.33 95.79 

(iii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- credit impaired - - - 28.70 2.31 349.80 380.81 
(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-considered good

 
- - - - - - - 

(v) Disputed Trade 
Receivables- which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk 

 
- - - - - - - 

(vi) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-Credit impaired 

 
0.09 0.53 1.57 38.62 28.46 290.02 359.29 

Total 7,390.93 1,151.42 69.72 69.80 31.86 652.15 9,365.88 

Less: Loss Allowance       (835.89) 

Grand Total       8,529.99 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 701 of 747



STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

9. Trade Receivables (Continued)
(  in lakhs) 

As at 31 March 2021 

Particulars  

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Not Due 

Less 
than 6 

months 

6 
months-

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

More 
than 3 
years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- Considered 
good 4,272.45 2,773.28 178.25 97.39 29.58 119.78 7,470.73 
(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- Significant 
increase in credit risk 

 
- - - - - 314.14 314.14 

(iii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables- Credit 
impaired - - - 0.74 87.11 60.46 148.31 
(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables- Considered  
good 

 
- - - - - - - 

(v) Disputed Trade 
Receivables- Significant 
increase in credit risk 

 
- - - - - - - 

(vi) Disputed Trade 
Receivables-Credit 
impaired

 
- - - 9.00 76.05 292.48 377.53 

Total 4,272.45 2,773.28 178.25 107.13 192.74 786.86 8,310.71 

Less: Loss Allowance       (839.98) 

Grand Total       7,470.73 

i. For trade receivables secured against borrowings Refer note 15 

ii. For trade receivables from related parties Refer note 33 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 
                                             (  in lakhs) 

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

    
a. Balances with banks (Refer note 15) 2,210.72 1,855.64 

b. Deposit with scheduled banks having maturity less than 
three months (Refer note 15) 

31,200.00 20,623.00 

 Cash and cash equivalent as per Statement of Cash Flows 33,410.72 22,478.64 

11. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents as above 
(  in lakhs) 

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

 Restricted bank balance # 97.05 6,051.43 

 Total 97.05 6,051.43 

# Represents unspent amount for CSR activities in FY 21-22 (Refer note 22 (i)) 

# Represents earnest money deposited in escrow account to acquire leasehold rights in a 
property in FY 20-21(Refer note 15) 
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12. Investments 
(  in lakhs) 

As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021

Non-current 
Investment designated at fair value through OCI

 

Fully paid equity shares (unquoted) # (Refer note 15) 

Avaada MHKhamgaon Private limited 1,950.00 1,950.00 

Avaada Sunlight Private limited 975.00 - 

Total 2,925.00 1,950.00 

 
# During the year, the Company has agreed to subscribe to 26% in the equity share capital of 
Avaada Sunlight Private limited. The Company plans to purchase solar power from the 
investee company for its data centres. The Company has made an irrevocable election to 
present subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment in other comprehensive income. 
 
The investment has been classified as a financial asset as per Note 2(r).  

13. Equity share capital 
(  in lakhs) 

  As at 
31 March 2022 

As at 
31 March 2021 

a. Authorised:    
 150,000,000 (2021:150,000,000) Equity shares of 10 each  15,000.00 15,000.00 
b. Issued, subscribed and paid up:   
 13,300 (2021:11,600) equity shares of 10 each fully paid 

up (Refer i below) 
1.33 1.16 

i. Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting year: 

Equity shares As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

 No of shares   in lakhs No of shares   in lakhs 

Opening balance 11,600 1.16 11,150 1.12 

Add: Right issue during the year 1,700 0.17 450 0.04 

Closing balance 13,300 1.33 11,600 1.16 

ii. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares: 

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a face value of 10 per share. 
Each shareholder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share at any general meeting 
of shareholders. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the 
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 
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13. Equity share capital (Continued) 

iii. Right issue of equity shares: 

 Vide its Board Meeting dated 28 January 2021, the Company approved Right 
issue of 800 equity shares with face value of  10 per share at a premium of  
3,347,610 per share aggregating to  2,678,096,000 to their existing shareholders 
in the ratio of current shareholding. The Board of Directors vide its meeting dated 
on 30 June 2021 approved the allotment of equity shares. 

 Vide its Board Meeting dated 1 September 2021, the Company approved Right 
issue of 350 equity shares with face value of  10 per share at a premium of  
4,224,634 per share aggregating to  1,478,625,400 to their existing shareholders 
in the ratio of current shareholding. The Board of Directors vide its meeting dated 
on 2 December 2021 approved the allotment of equity shares. 

 Vide its Board Meeting dated 1 September 2021, the Company approved Right 
issue of 300 equity shares with face value of  10 per share at a premium of  
4,224,634 per share aggregating to  1,267,393,200 to their existing shareholders 
in the ratio of current shareholding. The Board of Directors vide its meeting dated 
on 24 January 2022 approved the allotment of equity shares. 

 Vide its Board Meeting dated 24 January 2022, the Company approved Right 
issue of 250 equity shares with face value of  10 per share at a premium of  
4,394,336 per share aggregating to  1,098,586,500 to their existing shareholders 
in the ratio of current shareholding. The Board of Directors vide its meeting dated 
on 16 March 2022 approved the allotment of equity shares. 

iv. Shares held by holding company: 

     As at 31 March 2022        As at 31 March 2021 
 No of 

shares 
 in lakhs No of 

shares 
 in lakhs 

STT India DC Pte. Ltd. 
 

9,842 0.98 8,584 0.86 

v. Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued 
share capital and shares held by promoters: 

 As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

 
No of 

shares Percentage 
No of 
shares Percentage 

STT India DC Pte. Ltd. 9,842 74% 8,584 74% 

Tata Communications Limited.  3,458 26% 3,016 26% 

14. Other equity 
(  in lakhs) 

  As at  
  31 March 2022 

As at  
  31 March 2021 

    
a. Securities premium 110,867.22 45,640.38 
b. General reserve    8,750.00   8,750.00 
c. Retained earnings 27,750.53 12,381.32  
d. Other comprehensive income (75.28) (69.79) 
 Total 147,292.47 66,701.91 
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15. Borrowings 
(  in lakhs) 

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

(A) Non � current financial liabilities 
 Secured    
 Rupee loan from banks (Refer i below) 174,498.00 162,676.00 
 Less: Arrangement fees (883.95) (988.38)
 Total (A) 173,614.05 161,687.62 
    
(B) Current financial liabilities   

Secured   
 Rupee loan from banks (Refer i below) 17,178.00 14,838.00 

Less: Arrangement fees (104.42) (104.42) 
\ Total (B) 17,073.58 14,733.58 
    
 Total (A+B) 190,687.63 176,421.20 

i. Secured bank loan 

The Company had availed a loan facility of  160,000 lakhs from consortium of banks 
in financial year 2017-18 for repayment of existing loan and construction of new data 
centres. During the year the Company has repaid quarterly loan installments totaling to 

 14,388 lakhs for this loan facility.  

The Company also availed sanction of fresh loan of  300,000 lakhs in the financial 
year 2018-19 from consortium of banks, this loan is taken for construction of new data 
centres at various locations in India. Company had drawn  29,000 lakhs from this 
facility during the year and repaid quarterly loan installments totaling to  450 lakhs for 
this loan facility. 

Both the loan has been secured in favor of the Security Trustee acting for the benefit of 
the Secured Parties by way of first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of (the 
�Security�): (a) all the movable properties and assets (other than Insurance Contracts) 
of the Borrower (present and future), including, but not limited to, moveable plant and 
machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, both present and 
future; (b) all the Borrower�s accounts (present and future), including in each case, all  
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15. Borrowings (Continued) 

i. Secured bank loan (Continued) 

monies lying credited/deposited into such accounts; (c) all the Borrower�s current 
assets, book debts operating cash flows, commissions, receivables, revenues of 
whatsoever nature and wherever arising, all investments and other securities (present 
and future). 

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are as follows: 
                                                                                                                                                                                (  in lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 
Non current assets  
Property, plant and equipment 284,196.18 
Capital work-in-progress 9,475.60 
Right-of-use assets 144,515.91 
Other intangible assets 637.50 
Investments 2,925.00 
Other financial assets 5,911.81 
Income tax assets (net) 
Contract assets 

6,929.71 
2,378.89 

Other non-current assets 
 
Current assets 

4,926.42 
 

Trade receivables 8,529.99 
Cash and cash equivalents 33,410.72 
Unbilled receivables 5,822.71 
Income tax assets (net) 
Contract assets 

6,434.36 
48.61 

Other current assets 11,098.99 

The repayment schedule of loan from bank is stated below: 
                                            (  in lakhs) 

Date of Repayment Amount of Repayment 

FY 2022-23 17,178 

FY 2023-24 18,978 
FY 2024-25 20,806 
FY 2025-26 22,366 
FY 2026-27 25,183 
FY 2027-28 26,975 
FY 2028-29 28,145 
FY 2029-30 9,815 
FY 2030-31 9,620 

FY 2031-32 8,840 
FY 2032-33 3,770 

  191,676 
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15. Borrowings (Continued) 

i. Secured bank loan (Continued) 
(  in lakhs) 

 Interest Rate Year 
of maturity 

Carrying amount as at 
31 March 2022 

Secured Bank Loan  MCLR + 0.25% 2029 76,595 
Secured Bank Loan MCLR + 0.35% 2029 40,121 
Secured Bank Loan MCLR + 0.50% 2033      26,236 
Secured Bank Loan MCLR + 0.25% 2033     24,362 
Secured Bank Loan MCLR + 0.40% 2033      24,362 

Total   191,676 

Details of Covenant restrictions on bank loan 

There is no financial covenant in the  160,000 lakhs loan facility.  

For the loan of  300,000 lakhs financial covenants are as under. 

(a) A minimum DSCR (Debt service coverage ratio) of 1.15 x till the financial year 
2021; and 

(b) A minimum DSCR of 1.20 x from financial year 2022 throughout the tenor of 
the facility 

The Company has complied with the above covenant for the year ended 31 March 2022. 

ii. Unsecured bank loan  

The Company had drawn  NIL lakhs from the fund based facilities as on 31 March 
2022. 

16. Other financial liabilities  
(  in lakhs) 

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

A Non-current   

 a. Cash settled incentive    

 (i) Appreciation unit plan (AUP) (Refer note 27(iii)) 615.31 179.39 
 (ii) Restricted stock option Plan (RSUP) (Refer note 37) 135.37 132.28 

     Total 750.68 311.67 

b. Initial lease expense liability  

 - Payable to related parties (Refer note 33)  340.00 653.08 

 Total (A) 1,090.68 964.75 

    

The Company had signed working capital facility arrangements of  15,000 lakhs (Fund 
Based -  12,500 and Non Fund Based -  2,500) with banks in previous year.  
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16. Other financial liabilities (Continued)
(  in lakhs) 

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

B Current   
a. Payable for capital goods 
 - Payable to related parties (Refer note 33)  351.63 148.28 
 - Others  16,614.84 21,774.40 
  16,966.47 21,922.68 
b. Interest accrued on loan 432.90 388.17 
c. Accrued payroll 2,707.38 2,271.40 
d. Cash settled incentive    

(i) Appreciation unit plan (AUP) (Refer note 27(iii)) 3,320.84 1,469.96 
 (ii)Restricted stock option Plan(RSUP) (Refer note 37) 785.01 449.50 
e. Initial lease expense liability
 - Payable to related parties (Refer note 33)  313.07 288.28 
f. Other payables 24.09 17.01 

 Total (B) 24,549.76 26,807.00  

  
Total (A) + (B) 

 
25,640.44 

 
27,771.75 

17. Provisions  
(  in lakhs) 

               As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

A Non-current   
 Employee benefit obligations (Refer note 27)   

 -  Compensated absences  270.40 228.93 
 -  Gratuity liability 121.20 145.01 

 Total (A) 391.60 373.94 

B Current   
 Employee benefit obligations (Refer note 27)     
 - Compensated absences 26.86 22.73 
 Others   
 - Provision for License Fees # - 12,540.58 

 Total (B) 26.86 12,563.31 

 Total (A) + (B) 418.46 12,937.25 

# The Company held an Internet Service Provider license which was surrendered to the 
Department of Telecommunications (�DOT�) effective from 24 April 2015. As at 31 March 
2021, the Company recognized a provision for additional license fees amounts that may be 
paid based on the Company�s evaluation of recent court developments and other juridical 
interpretations on the revenue that is subject to license fee and charged it to Profit and Loss 
for the year then ended. DOT has completed its provisional assessment for FY 2011-12, FY 
2012-13, FY 2013-14, FY 2014-15 and Q1 FY 2015-16 and raised its demand, which has been 
paid by the Company. Basis this development, the Company has remeasured its liability 
towards license fees and reversed the provision in excess of demand raised by DOT and is 
disclosed as an exceptional item in the statement of profit and loss. 
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18. Other current liabilities 
(  in lakhs) 

               As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

 Current   

a. Statutory dues # 
 

843.35 627.93 

b. Others 532.73   766.46  

 Total  1,376.08 1,394.39 

 #Statutory dues include 
 i. TDS payable 414.06 372.19 
 ii. Professional tax 2.74 1.39 
 iii. GST payable 426.55 254.35 
    

19. Trade payables 
(  in lakhs) 

    As at 31 March 2022 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars  

  

Not Due 
Less than a 

year 
1-2 

years 
2-3 

years 
More than 

3 years Total  

(i) MSME 98.73               -   
   

-   
   

-                 -       98.73  

(ii) Others 1,386.04   48.97 14.60 0.29 50.12 1,500.02 

(iii) Disputed dues-   MSME               -                 -   
   

-   
   

-                 -                 -   

(iv) Disputed dues- Others               -                 -   
   

-   
   

-                 -                 -   

Total  1,484.77  48.97 14.60 0.29 50.12 1,598.75 

Unbilled dues           18,413.60 

Grand Total      20,012.35  
 

(  in lakhs) 

        As at 31 March 2021 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars  
Not Due 

Less than a 
year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years Total  

(i) MSME 1,028.82 268.03 
   

-   
   

-                 -   1,296.85 

(ii) Others - 36.01 10.32 185.10 - 231.43 

(iii) Disputed dues- MSME               -                 -   
   

-   
   

-                 -                 -   

(iv) Disputed dues- Others               -                 -   
   

-   
   

-                 -                 -   

Total  1,028.82  304.04 10.32 185.10 - 1,528.28 

Unbilled dues           23,968.22 

Grand Total      25,496.50  
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20. Revenue from operations 
(  in lakhs)

  For the year ended  
31 March 2022 

For the year ended  
31 March 2021 

 Revenue from data centre services  145,475.34 117,504.15 

 Total  145,475.34 117,504.15 

The revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss equals to the contracted price. 

 Unsatisfied performance obligations: 

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 retrospectively using the practical expedient in 
paragraph C5 (d) of Ind AS 115 under which the Company does not disclose for reporting 
periods presented before the date of initial application:  

a) The amount of transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations; 
nor 

b) An explanation of when the entity expects to recognize that amount as revenue.   

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue 
towards unsatisfied (or partially) satisfied performance obligations, along with the broad time 
band for the expected time to recognize those revenues, the Company has applied the practical 
expedient in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed the aggregate 
transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations, 
which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised corresponds to the value transferred to 
customer typically involving outcome based, and event based contracts. 

Unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations are subject to variability due to 
several factors such as terminations, changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations of 
the estimates, economic factors (changes in currency rates, tax laws etc). 

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) 
performance obligations is  708,378.39 lakhs out of which 12.1% is expected to be 
recognized as revenue in the next year and balance thereafter. 

Variable consideration that is constrained and therefore not included in the transaction price 
is excluded in the amount presented above. 

The Company has evaluated the impact of COVID � 19 resulting from termination or 
deferment of contracts by customers. The Company has concluded that the impact of COVID 
� 19 is not material on the existing revenues basis the current estimates.  

21. Other income 
(  in lakhs) 

  
 

For the year ended  
31 March 2022 

For the year ended  
31 March 2021 

a. Interest income 1,146.33 1,000.55 
b. Interest on income tax refund - 578.58 
c. Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

and intangibles (net) 
1,305.42 509.37 

d. Other non-operating income (net)   
 - Foreign exchange gain (net) 0.05 - 

 Total 2,451.80 2,088.50 
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22. Operating and other expenses 
(  in lakhs) 

   For the year ended For the year ended 
 

 
 31 March 2022  31 March 2021  

a. Power and fuel  47,937.45 41,229.38 
b. Rent 407.70 590.46 
c. Repairs and maintenance:   
 Buildings 1,878.91 1,631.93 
 Plant and machinery 6,963.38 5,873.57 
 Others 3,156.96 2,742.63 
d. Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) under expected 

credit loss model 
605.80 (343.41) 

e. Network and cable charges 564.48 568.94 
f. Rates and taxes  1,436.14  2,023.29  
g. Travelling  454.15 418.67 
h. Outsource services 727.21 662.47 
i. Legal and professional charges 1,685.58 1,655.49 
j. Sales and marketing Expenses 525.54 491.01 
k. Insurance   412.38 336.09 
l. Security charges 1,150.89 1,122.98 
m. Water charges 541.27 446.67 
n. Director�s remuneration 426.88 324.84 
o. Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer i) 95.90 228.60 
p. Other expenses (Refer ii) 440.74  472.90  

 Total 69,411.36  60,476.51  

i. As required by the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon, gross amount required to 
be spent by the Company during the year toward corporate social responsibility (CSR) 
amount to  95.90 lakhs (2021: 228.60 lakhs). The Company has deposited the 
unspent amount of  95.90 lakhs (2021:  NIL lakhs) into Unspent Corporate Social 
Responsibility Account as per section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31 
March 2022.  

ii. Other expenses include auditors� remuneration as follows (excluding taxes): 
(  in lakhs) 

 For the year ended  
31 March 2022 

For the year ended  
31 March 2021 

Auditors� remuneration and expenses    

Services as Statutory Auditors 17.00 15.50 

Tax audit fees 4.00 3.50 

Other audit related fees 36.00 30.00 

For reimbursement of expenses 3.00 4.80 
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23. Employee benefits expense 
(  in lakhs) 

  For the year ended  
31 March 2022 

For the year ended  
31 March 2021 

a. Salaries, bonus and related costs 7,974.25  6,689.13  

b. Contribution to provident funds (Refer note 27) 256.26 207.09 

c. Gratuity expense (Refer note 27) 109.13 169.78 

d. Compensated absences 73.71 49.80 

e. Share based payments   

 - Cash settled incentive (Refer note 27) 2,639.50 868.50 

f. Staff welfare expenses  1,207.32 1,081.78 

 Total 12,260.17 9,066.08 

24. Finance costs   

(  in lakhs) 
  

 
For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
a. Interest costs:  
 -On loan from banks measured at amortised cost 14,914.39 13,858.45 
 Less: Amount capitalised * 341.36 327.63 

  14,573.03 13,530.82 
 -Others (48.51) 87.94 

 Total (A) 14,524.52 13,618.76 

   
b. Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 34 (a) (iii)) 11,112.71 10,554.27 
 Less: Amount capitalized - 793.54 

 Total (B) 11,112.71 9,760.73 

   
c. Interest on initial lease expenses liability# (C) 51.72 74.56 

 Finance cost expensed in profit and loss (A+B+C) 25,688.95 23,454.05 

*The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is 
the weighted average interest rate applicable to the Company�s general borrowings during the 
year, i.e., 7.60% (2021: 7.98%). 
# Refer note 16 (A) and 16 (B) 

25. Depreciation and amortisation expense 
(  in lakhs) 

 For the year ended  
31 March 2022 

For the year ended  
31 March 2021 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  21,426.25 14,506.01 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer note 34 (a) (i)) 10,223.03 8,532.63 
Amortization of intangible assets  234.80 111.27 

Total 31,884.08 23,149.91 
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26. Tax expense 

i. Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and loss: 
(  in lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

For the year ended 
31 March 2021 

   
Current tax   
In respect of current year - - 
In respect of prior years (400.41) (322.09) 

Total Current tax (a) (400.41) (322.09) 
Deferred tax   
In respect of the current year 5,214.28 (2,227.73) 
In respect of the earlier years 422.47 322.25 

Total deferred tax (b) 5,636.75 (1,905.47) 

Total Income tax expense (a+b) 5,236.34 (2,227.56) 

ii. The reconciliation between the provision of income tax of the Company and amounts 
computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit / (loss) before tax is 
as follows: 

(  in lakhs) 
Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
   
Profit/ (Loss) before tax  20,605.55 (9,094.48) 
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% Tax 
rate (2021 : 25.168% Tax rate) 

 
5,186.00 

 
(2,288.89) 

Reasoning   
Effect of adjustments that are not deductible in 
determining taxable profit 

 
28.28 

 
61.17 

True up impact of prior years 22.06 0.16 

Total 50.34 61.33 
   

Income tax expense recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss 

 
5,236.34 

 
(2,227.56) 

 

 iii. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  
(  in lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

For the year ended 
31 March 2021 

Deferred tax   
Re-measurements of the defined benefit obligation 1.84 2.00 

Total Income tax  1.84 2.00 
Bifurcation of income taxes recognized in other 
comprehensive income into: 

  

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 1.84 2.00 
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27. Employee Benefits 

i. Defined contribution plan - Provident fund: 

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund under a defined contribution 
retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund is administered 
by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under this scheme, the Company is 
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the benefits.  

Provident fund contributions amounting to  256.26 lakhs (2021:  207.09 lakhs) have 
been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, under Contribution to provident, 
gratuity and other funds in note 23 �Employee benefits expense�. 

ii. Defined benefit obligation � Gratuity 

The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death 
while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 
days salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. 
Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The cost of providing benefits 
for defined benefit schemes is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with 
actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. 

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risk such as interest rate risk and 
salary risk: 

Interest rate risk The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on 
government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend 
to increase 

Salary risk Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit 
obligation 

Demographic risk This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of 
decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement.  The 
effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight 
forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate 
and vesting criteria.  It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the 
financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically 
costs less per year as compared to a long service employee 

Regulatory risk Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of 
Gratuity Act,1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change 
in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts. 

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees. 

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March 2022 by an independent 
actuary.  
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27. Employee Benefits (Continued)

ii. Defined benefit obligation � Gratuity (Continued) 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as 
follows: 

  As at 
31 March 2022 

As at 
31 March 2021 

 Principal actuarial assumptions   
 Discount rate     6.80% 6.50% 
 Salary escalation Rate: 10% 7% for first year;10% 

thereafter 
 Mortality rate Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) Ult. 

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) 

Ult. 
 Withdrawal rate   
 Less than 5 years 10% 10% 
 5 years and more 8% 8% 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India 
securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations. 

The estimates of future compensation cost considered in the actuarial valuation take 
account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined 
benefit plans are as follows: 

                                                 (  in lakhs)  
  
   For the year 

ended 
For the year 

ended 
I Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
 Current service cost 109.13 61.66 
 Past Service cost � plan amendments - 108.12 
 Net interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) 4.71 (0.20) 

Components of defined benefit cost recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer note 23 and 24) 113.84 169.58 

    
   For the year 

ended 
For the year 

ended 
II Expenses recognised in the other comprehensive income 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
 Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial 

assumptions 
 

(14.79) 
 

7.85 
 Actuarial changes arising from experience adjustments 26.54 0.26 
 Actuarial changes arising from return on plan assets (4.42) (0.15) 
 Components of defined benefit cost recognised in other 

comprehensive income 
 

7.33 
 

7.96 
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27. Employee Benefits (Continued)

ii. Defined benefit obligation � Gratuity (Continued) 

During the year 2018-19, the Company had opened a trust to manage the Gratuity plan, 
the contributions being administered by the Trustees. The details in respect of the 
funded amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet for these defined benefit schemes are 
as under: 

(  in lakhs) 
Particulars Gratuity 

As at 31 March As at 31 March 

  2022   2021 
III Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet   
 Obligation at the end of the year 570.66 495.75 
 Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation  121.20 145.01 

Non-current provision (Refer note 17A) 121.20 145.01 
    

IV Change in the defined benefit obligation   
 Opening defined benefit obligation  495.75 342.25 
 Current service cost 109.13 61.66 
 Interest cost 29.76 21.09 
 Past service cost � plan amendments - 108.12 
 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations- experience 26.54 0.26 
 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations� demographic 

assumptions 
- 16.97 

 Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations� financial 
assumptions 

(14.79) (9.12) 

 Benefits paid (from plan assets) (75.73) (45.48) 

 Closing defined benefit obligation 570.66 495.75 
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27. Employee Benefits (Continued) 

ii. Defined benefit obligation � Gratuity (Continued) 

(  in lakhs) 

Particulars 

Gratuity 

As at 31 March As at 31 March 

  2022   2021 
    

V Changes in plan asset 
 
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year  

 
 

350.74 

 
 

315.99 
 Interest income  25.05 21.29 

 Employer contributions 144.99 58.79 

 Benefits paid  (75.73) (45.48) 

 Return on plan assets greater / (lesser) than discount rate 4.41 0.15 

 Fair value of the plan assets, end of year 449.46 350.74 

    

VI Funded status   

 (Deficit)/Surplus of plan assets over obligations 
(Refer note 17A) 

(121.20) (145.01) 

    
VII A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 

2021 is as shown below: (As per actuarial valuation report) 
 The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 

respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other 
assumptions constant. 

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

 Discount rate   
 Increase (1%) (45.43) (41.10) 
 Decrease (1%)                     51.63 46.89 
    
 Salary escalation rate 
 Increase (1%) 51.04 46.30 
 Decrease (1%) (45.84) (41.43) 
    
 Withdrawal rate   
 Increase (5%) (48.75) (47.95) 
 Decrease (5%) 74.09 73.85 
  

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the 
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in 
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
 
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting 
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability 
recognized in the Balance Sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in 
preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. 
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27. Employee Benefits (Continued) 

ii. Defined benefit obligation � Gratuity (Continued) 

     
VIII Maturity profile of defined benefit plan   As at  

31 March 2022 
 31 March 2023   29.60 
 31 March 2024   43.87 
 31 March 2025   50.43 
 31 March 2026   66.99 

 31 March 2027   80.67 
 31 March 2027 to 31 March 2031   632.59 

 Total expected payments   904.15 
     
II Leave plan and compensated absences 

   Leave unavailed of by eligible employees may be carried forward / encashed by them / their 
nominees in the event of death or permanent disablement or resignation, subject to a maximum 
leave of 60 days in addition to accumulated leave balance available in accumulated quota. 

  

 The total liability for compensated absences as at the year end is  297.26 lakhs (2021:  251.66 
lakhs), as shown under non-current provisions  270.40 lakhs (2021:  228.93 lakhs) and current 
provisions  26.86 lakhs (2021:   22.73 lakhs). The amount charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is  88.67 lakhs (2021:  63.08 lakhs). 

  

iii. Share based payments  

a. Description of cash settled payment arrangement 

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company 
approved a long term incentives scheme to its high performing employees in the 
form of Cash-settled Appreciation Unit Plan (AUP), whereby the eligible 
employees will be granted certain AUP units. 

The AUP units granted were equally divided into four/five tranches and each 
tranche/grant can be encashed over a seven year period subject to the terms of the 
encashment conditions of the scheme.  

On the �event of exercise' subject to the express provisions of the scheme, each 
eligible employee shall, subject to deduction of taxes at appropriate rates, be paid 
an amount equivalent to the difference between the Fair Value determined as of the 
relevant valuation date prior to encashment and the Initial Value, subject to a 
minimum of NIL.  

The final value of an AUP shall be the Initial Value adjusted with the cumulative 
Total Shareholder's Return (TSR) % after taking into account the dividends paid 
and adjustments of net new equity, if any. Being an unlisted Company, the TSR 
calculation has been done on the basis of Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT) 
Improvement Valuation Model. 
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27. Employee Benefits (Continued) 

iii. Share based payments (Continued) 

b. Measurement of fair values 

 

 

 

  

c. Reconciliation of outstanding AUP Units 

 For the year ended 31 March 
2022 

For the year ended 31 March 
2021 

 Number of 
units 

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
( ) 

Number of 
units 

Weighted 
average exercise 

price ( ) 

Outstanding at 
beginning of the year 

2,239,727 170.95 1,730,355 144.07 

Granted during the 
year 

4,466,800 140.77 999,100 136.22 

Forfeited during the 
year 

221,927 125.23 183,446 123.19 

Exercised during the 
year 

431,225 182.94 306,282 149.00 

Outstanding at the end 
of the year   

6,053,375 167.97 2,239,727 170.95 

     

d. Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

For details on the employee benefits expense Refer note 23 

  

The key assumptions used to estimate the fair 
value of options using Black - Scholes pricing 
model: 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 

Initial Value at Grant date  100 for each grant 

Exercise price Initial Value adjusted with the cumulative TSR% 
taking into account dividends paid and adjusted for 
any net new equity 

Expected time to exercise option (Range) (15 days encashment window of 1st to 15th July 
annually) 

Vesting period Grant 2022 Grant 2021 Grant 2020   Grant 2019      Grant 2018    

    1st Tranche 1 April 2022 1 April 2021 1 April 2020 1 April 2019 1 April 2018 

    2nd Tranche 1 April 2023 1 April 2022 1 April 2021 1 April 2020 1 April 2019 

    3rd Tranche 1 April 2024 1 April 2023 1 April 2022 1 April 2021 1 April 2020 

    4th Tranche 1 April 2025 1 April 2024 1 April 2023 1 April 2022 1 April 2021 
    5th Tranche 1 April 2026 - - - - 

Expected volatility 30.20% 30.20% 30.20% 30.20%      30.20% 

Expected dividend                   NIL  

Risk- free rate over 
vesting period (Range) 

6.47% 6.26% 5.98%       5.62% 5.19% 

AUP unit value ( ) 140.77 191.75 244.52      290.41        344.93 
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28. Earnings per share 
(  in lakhs)  

  As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

  
Net profit / (loss) after tax attributable to the equity shareholders 
(A) 15,369.21 (6,866.92) 
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,300 11,600 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
year (B) 12,383 11,467 
 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (  per equity share of  
 10 each) (A/B) (In ) 124,115.40 (59,884.19) 

 Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year: 

As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

  
Opening balance (Refer note 13(i)) 11,600 11,150 
Effect of right issue of shares for cash 783 317 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
 Year 12,383 11,467 

29. Segment reporting 

The Board of directors of the Company have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The Company is engaged in 
providing data center co-location services which comprises of space, power, cooling, physical 
security, storage, networking and one time charges for set up activity. Considering the nature 
of the Company's business and operations, there are no other reportable segments (business 
and/or geographical) and is also considered by CODM as the only reportable business segment 
taking into account the nature of the business, the organization structure, internal reporting 
structure and risk and rewards. 

Information about major customers: - 
(  in lakhs)  

Name For the Year Ended  
31 March 2022 

Customer A 64,504.73 
Customer C 7,600.54 
Customer B 7,686.47 

 
(  in lakhs) 

Name For the Year Ended  
31 March 2021 

Customer A 42,749.03 
Customer C 7,833.41 
Customer B 8,217.14 
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30. Financial instruments 

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of 
measurement and the basis on which income and expense are recognised, in respect of each 
class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2(s) to 
the financial statements. 

 Financial assets and liabilities 

 The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2022 is as follows: 
 (  in lakhs) 

 Fair value through 
profit or loss 

Fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

Amortised 
cost 

Total carrying 
value 

Financial assets:     
Investments  - 2,925.00 - 2,925.00 
Other financial assets - - 5,911.81 5,911.81 
Trade receivables - - 8,529.99 8,529.99 
Cash and cash equivalents - - 33,410.72 33,410.72 
Other bank balances - - 97.05 97.05 
Unbilled receivables - - 5,822.71 5,822.71 

     

Total - 2,925.00 53,772.28 56,697.28 
     

Financials liabilities:     
Borrowings - - 190,687.63 190,687.63 
Lease liabilities - - 131,838.89 131,838.89 
Other financial liabilities - - 25,640.44 25,640.44 
Trade payables - - 20,012.35 20,012.35 
     

Total - - 368,179.31 368,179.31 

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2021 is as follows: 
(  in lakhs) 

 Fair value 
through profit 

or loss 

Fair value through 
other comprehensive 

income 

Amortised 
cost 

Total carrying 
value 

Financial assets:     
  

Investments - 1,950.00 - 1,950.00 
Other financial assets - - 5,726.88 5,726.88 
Trade receivables - - 7,470.73 7,470.73 
Cash and cash equivalents - - 22,478.64 22,478.64 
Other bank balances - - 6,051.43 6,051.43 
Unbilled receivables - - 5,510.69 5,510.69 

Total - 1,950.00 47,238.37 49,188.37 
     

Financials liabilities:     
Borrowings - - 176,421.20 176,421.20 
Lease liabilities - - 133,299.82 133,299.82 
Other financial liabilities - - 27,771.75 27,771.75 
Trade payables - - 25,496.50 25,496.50 
     

Total - - 362,989.27 362,989.27 

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, unbilled receivables and 
trade payables as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 approximate the fair value because of 
their short term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other financial 
assets, other financial liabilities and borrowings subsequently measured at amortised cost is 
not significant in each of the years presented. Fair value measurement of lease liabilities is not 
required. 
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30. Financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy: 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure 
fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consist of following three levels: 

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are 
determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither 
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor 
are they based on available market data. 

The following tables summarises financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis: 

As at 31 March 2022 
(  in lakhs)

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial Assets     
Investment in equity shares (Refer 
Note 12) 

- - 2,925.00 2,925.00 

Total - - 2,925.00 2,925.00 

The cost of unquoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy has been 
considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value since it is a transaction between two 
unrelated, independent parties, the transaction value / amount invested represents fair value.  

As at 31 March 2021 
(  in lakhs)

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Financial Assets     
Investment in equity shares (Refer 
Note 12) 

- - 1,950.00 1,950.00 

Total - - - - 

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement is as follows: 
   (  in lakhs) 

 As at  
31 March 2022 

 As at  
31 March 2021 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,950.00 - 
Additions during the year 975.00 1,950.00 
Fair value changes through OCI - - 

Balance at the end of the year 2,925.00 1,950.00 

 

  

Page 722 of 747



STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited  
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Currency in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company�s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other 
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company�s 
operations. The Company�s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, 
investments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The 
Company may invest in mutual funds, the returns on the same are recognised through profit 
or loss.  

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  

The Company�s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company�s 
senior management ensures that financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies 
and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance 
with the Company�s policies and risk objectives. The senior management reviews and agrees 
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. 

a) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of 
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and 
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and 
borrowings, deposits, fair value through profit or loss investments, 

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 
2022 and 31 March 2021. 

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying 
values of gratuity and other post- retirement obligations and provisions.  

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis: 

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in 
respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held 
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. 

b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows with respect to interest payments 
on borrowings will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
Company�s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to 
the Company�s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The following table sets forth information relating to interest rate exposure (net) as at 
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.  

                                                                                                                                                                            (  in lakhs) 

 As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 
Financial liabilities � Borrowings 191,676.00 177,514.00 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis:      (  in lakhs)

 Profit before tax        Equity 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
As at 31 

March 2022 
As at 31 

March 2021 
Increase by 1%  (1,916.76) (1,775.14) (1,434.35) (1,328.37) 
Decrease by 1% 1,916.76 1,775.14 1,434.35 1,328.37 
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

c) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company�s exposure 
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company�s 
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)  

The Company�s objective is to try and protect the underlying values of the functional 
currency of respective Company�s Balance Sheet exposures. All exposures in currency 
other than functional currency are treated as �Forex Exposures� irrespective of the group 
Company from where the exposures originate. Exposures are broadly categorized into 
receivables and payable exposures.  

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by aggregation of the net foreign 
exchange rate exposure and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rate shift of all 
the currencies by 5% against the functional currency of the Company. 

The following analysis has been worked out based on the net exposures of the Company 
as of the date of Balance Sheet, which would affect the statement of Profit and Loss and 
equity. 

The following tables sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure (net) 
as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.  

(  in lakhs)  
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

Currency Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets 

USD - 111.98 - 103.08 

SGD 60.02 - 148.44 - 

Others 23.67 0.63 22.98 37.71 
     

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis: 

(  in lakhs)

 Profit before tax Equity 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
As at 31 

March 2022 
As at 31 March 

2021 
Increase by 5%  1.45 (1.53) 1.08 (1.15) 
Decrease by 5%                        (1.45)                         1.53                 (1.08)                  1.15 

d) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial 
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed 
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its 
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign 
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.  

In determining the allowances for doubtful trade and unbilled receivables, the Company 
has used a simplified approach by computing the expected credit loss allowance based 
on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss 
experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss 
allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the 
provision matrix. 
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

d) Credit risk (Continued) 

Ageing of receivables (net of loss allowance) 
(  in lakhs) 

 As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

Within credit period 7,390.84 4,918.23 
0-90 days 998.64 2,248.00 
91-180 days 140.51 304.50 
181-365 days - - 
More than 365 days - - 

Total trade receivables 8,529.99 7,470.73 

   

Unbilled receivables 5,822.71 5,510.69 
   

Movement in expected credit loss allowance (Refer note 5 and 9) 
(  in lakhs) 

 Year ended  
31 March 2022 

Year ended  
31 March 2021 

Opening balance 1,303.82 1,647.24 
Net re-measurement/(reversal) of loss allowance 605.80 (343.42) 

Balance at the end of the year 1,909.62 1,303.82 

The Company determines allowance for credit based on historical loss experience 
adjusted to reflect current and estimated economic condition. In calculating expected 
credit loss the Company has taken into account estimates of possible effect from 
pandemic relating to COVID-19. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade 
receivables and advances to supplier provided in books is considered adequate. 

e) Liquidity risk 

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. 

The Company�s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, finance leases and hire 
purchase contracts.  

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet 
its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company�s corporate treasury 
department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In 
addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior 
management.  

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company�s financial liabilities 
based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

(  in lakhs) 
Year ended 31 March 2022 On 

demand 
0 to 12 

months 
1 to 5 
years 

>5 years Total 

Borrowings  - 17,178.00 87,333.00 87,165.00 191,676.00 
Lease liabilities - 16,590.98 66,152.43 183,796.49 266,539.90 
Non-current financial liabilities  - - 340.00 750.68 1,090.68 
Current financial liabilities  12,087.51 12,462.25 - - 24,549.76 
Trade payables 4,022.46 15,989.89 - - 20,012.35 
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

e) Liquidity risk (Continued) 

(  in lakhs) 
Year ended 31 March 2021 On 

demand 
0 to 12 

months 
1 to 5 
years 

>5 years Total 

Borrowings  - 14,838.00 74,108.00 88,568.00 177,514.00 
Lease liabilities - 15,133.69 63,450.16 199,839.32 278,423.17 
Non-current financial liabilities  - - 653.08 311.67 964.75 
Current financial liabilities  4,693.67 22,113.33 - - 26,807.00 
Trade payables 2,456.89 23,039.61 - - 25,496.50 

The amounts disclosed in the maturity analysis does not exactly match with the carrying 
amounts in the Balance sheet because the amounts included in the liquidity analysis are 
undiscounted cash flows whereas the amount disclosed in the Balance sheet are at 
amortised cost, i.e. net off arrangement fees. 

32. Capital management: 

The Company�s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard 
business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the 
capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic 
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, loans and operating cash 
flows generated. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

The capital structure is as follows: 
(  in lakhs)  

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2022 

As at 
 31 March 2021 

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the 
Company 

147,293.80 66,703.07 

As percentage of total capital 43.58% 27.44% 

Current loans and borrowings 17,073.58 14,733.58 

Non-current loans and borrowings 173,614.05 161,687.62 

Total loans and borrowings 190,687.63 176,421.20 

As a percentage of total capital 56.42% 72.56% 

Total capital (loans and borrowings and equity) 337,981.43 243,124.27 
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33. Related party transactions 

i. Names of related parties and nature of relationship 

Sr No Category of related parties Names 

A Holding Company STT India DC Pte. Ltd.   
B Investing Company, its subsidiaries 

and joint ventures  
Tata Communications Limited 

Tata Communications (America) Inc. 

  Tata Communications (Canada) Limited 

  Tata Communications International Pte Limited 

  Tata Communications Services International Pte 
Limited 

  Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited 

Tata Communications Transformation Services 
Limited 

Tata Communications Collaboration Services Ltd 

  Tata Communications (UK) Limited 

  Tata Communications (Ireland) Limited 

  Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ � LLC 

  Tata Communications (France) SAS 

 

 

C 

 

 

Holding Company�s its subsidiaries  

and Joint ventures  

Smart ICT Services Private Limited 

 

STT GDC Pte. Ltd. 

STT Communications Ltd 

   

D Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Sumit Mukhija  - CEO 

Mr. Ah Doo Lim - Director 

Mr. Bruno Lopez - Director 

Mr. Arjun Soota  - Director 

Mr. Tat Hiang Sio - Director 

Mr. Tri Luu Pham - Director 

Mr. Stephen Geoffrey Miller - Director 

Mr. Kabir Ahmed Shakir � Director  
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33. Related party transactions (Continued)

ii. Summary of transactions and balances with related parties 
(  in lakhs) 

Particulars Holding 
Company** 

Investing Company, 
its subsidiaries and 

joint ventures** 

Key 
Management 

Personnel* 

Total 

Transactions  
 

Revenue from 
operations 

- 8,515.66 - 8,515.66 

 - 8,001.29 - 8,001.29 
 

Outsource 
services 

- 1,858.78 - 1,858.78 

 - 1,640.00 - 1,640.00 
 

 
   

Commission - - - - 

 - 14.57 - 14.57 

  
  

 
 

Rent  - 408.00 - 408.00 
 - 478.99 - 478.99 
     

Network and 
cable charges 

- 370.69 - 370.69 

 - 462.29 - 462.29 
  

  
 

 

  
  

 
  

Rights issue of 
shares 

48,267.99 16,959.02 -  65,227.01 

 9,765.11 3,430.99 -  13,196.10 

Salaries and 
related costs 

- - 1,451.66  1,451.66 

 - - 525.77
 

525.77 
     
Directors 
remuneration 

                         
-     

- 426.88 426.88 

 - - 183.14 183.14 
     

Lease payment - 14,844.30 - 14,844.30 

- 13,234.21 - 13,234.21 
     
Capital Work in 
progress 

- 356.67 - 356.67 

 - 207.01 - 207.01 

Initial lease 
expense 

- 340.00                      - 340.00 

 - 340.00 
 

- 340.00 
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33. Related party transactions (Continued) 

ii. Summary of transactions and balances with related parties (Continued) 
(  in lakhs) 

Particulars Holding 
Company** 

Investing Company, 
its subsidiaries and 

associates** 

Key 
Management 

Personnel* 

Total 

   
 

 

Balances     
Receivables - 86.36 - 86.36 
 - 369.69 - 369.69 

Payables (Incl. 
Capital 
creditors) 

- 5,875.10 2,233.43 8,108.53 

 - 3,577.91 1,236.95 4,814.86 
     
Other current 
liability 

- 832.25 - 832.25 

 
 
Other Non 
current liability 

- 
 

- 
- 

553.47 
 

319.82 
294.66 

- 
 

- 
- 

553.47 
 

319.82 
294.66 

     
Deposits - 2,788.87 - 2,788.87 
 - 1,798.97 - 1,798.97 
     
Other current 
& non current 
assets � capital 
advance and 
prepaid  

- 17,485.46 - 17,485.46 

 - 16,764.50 - 16,764.50 
 
Lease liabilities 
 
Initial lease 
expense 
liability 

 
- 
- 
 

- 
- 

 
128,692.21 
132,021.10 

 
653.07 
941.34 

 
- 
- 
 

- 
- 

 
128,692.21 
132,021.10 

653.07 
941.34 

 

Note: Previous year�s figures are in italics 

*Remuneration does not include charge for gratuity and leave encashment as employee-
wise break up is not available. 

** Reimbursement made of expenses incurred by related party for business purpose of 
the Company, or reimbursement received for expenses incurred by the Company on 
behalf of a related party shall not be deemed related party transactions.
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33. Related party transactions (Continued)

iii. Statement of significant transaction    
(  in lakhs) 

Name of the Company For the year ended  

31 March 2022 

For the year ended  

31 March 2021 

Holding Company   

STT India DC Pte. Ltd.   

Rights issue of shares 48,267.99 9,765.11 

   

Investing Company, its subsidiaries and associates    

Tata Communication Limited   

     Revenue from operations 7,690.00 6,856.64 

     Rent 408.00 478.99 

     Outsource services 1765.48 1,559.99 

     Commission - 14.57 

     Network and cable charges 96.86 82.37 

     Lease Payment                14,844.30                13,234.21 

     Capital work in progress                    356.67                     207.01 

     Payables (Incl. Capital creditors) 5,757.24 3,368.59 

     Rights issue of shares 16,959.02 3,430.99 

     Security Deposit 2,788.87 1,798.97 

     Capital Advances incl. Prepaid expenses 17,351.09 16,630.14 

     Other current liability 

     Other Non-current liability  

757.85 

319.82 

518.37 

294.66 

     Lease Liabilities             128,692.21    132,021.10 

Tata Communications Transformation Services 
Limited 

  

     Revenue from operations 81.85 65.72 

     Outsource services including network cable charges  363.64 456.87 

     Initial Lease Expense 340.00 340.00 

     Other current assets � Prepaid expenses 134.37 134.37 

     Trade Receivable 49.99 98.99 

     Trade Payable 114.30 184.87 

     Other current liability 5.16 2.72 

     Initial Lease Expense Liability 653.07 941.34 
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33. Related party transactions (Continued)

iii. Statement of significant transaction (Continued)  
(  in lakhs) 

Name of the Company For the year ended  

31 March 2022 

For the year ended  

31 March 2021 

Tata Communications (America) Inc.   

     Revenue from operations 186.49 422.79 

     Trade receivable - 104.85 

     Other current liability  9.45 4.47 

Tata Communications (UK) Limited   

     Revenue from operations 375.76 404.04 

     Trade receivable - 35.61 

     Other Current Liability 1.23 - 

Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited   

     Revenue from operations 131.22 145.92 

     Trade receivable 33.71 105.72 

     Other current liability 58.20 27.90 

Tata Communications International Pte. Ltd   

     Revenue from operations 33.17 81.09 

     Trade receivable 2.67 22.85 

Tata Communications (Canada) Ltd.   

     Revenue from operations 17.17 16.27 

     Trade receivable - 2.29 

     Other current liability 0.35 - 

   

iv. Key management personnel compensation 
(  in lakhs) 

 Year Ended  
31 March 2022 

Year Ended 31 
March 2021 

Short-term employee benefits 570.02 354.16 
Post- employment benefit 19.35 14.11 
Share based payments � cash settled incentive 862.29 157.50 

 1,451.66  525.77 

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail 
in arm's length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through 
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 
party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement 
occurs in cash. 
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34. Leases 

a. As lessee: 

'Property, plant and equipment' comprises owned and leased assets that do not meet the 
definition of investment property. 

i) Right-of-use assets 

(  in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2022  
Balance as at 1 April 2021 (A) 119,622.88 
Depreciation charge for the year (B) # 10,332.03 
Additions to right-of-use assets (C) 35,225.06 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 (A-B+C) 144,515.91 

(  in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2021  
Balance as at 1 April 2020 (A) 116,789.43 
Depreciation charge for the year (B) # 9,415.23 
Additions to right-of-use assets (C) 12,248.68 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 (A-B+C) 119,622.88 

Right-of-use assets are mainly data centre premises taken on lease. 

# Total depreciation charge for the year amounts to  10,332.03 lakhs (2021:  9,415.23 
lakhs) of which,  109.00 lakhs (2021:  882.60 lakhs) depreciation charge is being 
capitalized. Therefore, the amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as 
depreciation on right-of-use assets is  10,223.03 lakhs (2021:  8,532.63 lakhs). 

ii) Lease liabilities 

 Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows 
(  in lakhs)

 As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

Less than one year 16,590.98 15,133.69 
One to five years 66,152.43 63,450.16 
More than five years 183,796.49 199,839.32 

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 266,539.90 278,423.17 

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 

(  in lakhs)

 As at  
31 March 2022 

As at  
31 March 2021 

Current 5,835.81 4,149.52 
Non-current 126,003.08 129,150.30 

Total 131,838.89 133,299.82 
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34. Leases (Continued)

a. As lessee: (Continued) 

iii) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 

(  in lakhs)
Year Ended  

31 March 2022 
Year Ended  

31 March 2021 
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 24) 11,112.71 9,760.73 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 10,223.03 8,532.63 

The Company incurred Nil (2021:  111.05 lakhs) for the year ended 31 March 2022 
towards expenses relating to short-term lease.  

iv) Amount recognized in Statement of Cash Flow 

(  in lakhs)
 Year Ended  

31 March 2022 
Year Ended  

31 March 2021 
Repayment of lease liabilities 5,217.16 4,427.93 
Finance cost paid towards lease liabilities 10,585.67 9,762.31 

Total 15,802.83 14,190.24 

The lease payments have been classified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash 
Flow under Ind AS 116. 

The cash outflow relating to short-term lease is Nil (2021:  123.29 lakhs) for the year 
ended 31 March 2022. 

v) Extension options 

The leases contracts of the Company contain a non-cancellable period after which the 
contract is auto renewed unless it is terminated by the Company. The extension options 
are exercisable only by the Company and not by the lessors. The Company includes in 
its lease term non-cancellable period plus extension options that the Company is 
reasonably certain to exercise. If the lease is extended beyond the renewal term, then 
the lease rentals will be mutually agreed between the parties based on the fair value of 
lease rent at the time of extension.   

The data centres of the Company are primarily on leased properties. The leases that the 
Company has entered are long term in nature and no material changes in the lease terms 
are expected due to the COVID-19.  

b. As lessor: 

Lease income included in revenue, arising from data center building (part of right-of-
use assets) for which the Company acts as a lessor is as below: 

Operating lease        (  in lakhs)

 Year Ended  
31 March 2022 

Year Ended  
31 March 2021 

Lease income 2,007.61 1,476.87 

The above are classified as operating leases because they do not transfer substantially 
all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets.  
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34. Leases (Continued)

b. As lessor: (Continued) 

The following table sets out maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the 
undiscounted lease payments to be received after the reporting period. 

(  in lakhs) 
 As at  

31 March 2022 
As at  

31 March 2021 

Due not later than one year 2,193.64 1,530.62 
Due later than one year but not later than five years 9,851.35 4,087.41 
Later than five years 19,811.31 9,055.57 
 31,856.30 14,673.60 
   

35. Contingent liabilities and commitments: 

i. Contingent liabilities   

 The Hon�ble Supreme Court of India (SC) by their order dated 28 February 2019, in the 
case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s EPFO, set out the principles based on which 
allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for 
the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review 
petition against this decision has been filed and is pending before the SC for disposal. 

  In view of the management, the liability from date of the SC order to 31 March 2019 
including prior period is accounted assuming retrospective application of the Supreme 
Court�s ruling.  Further, pending decision on the subject review petition and directions 
from the EPFO, the impact with respect to certain former employees and whether 
interest and penalties may be assessed, if any, is not ascertainable and consequently no 
effect has been given in the accounts. Accordingly, this has been disclosed as a 
Contingent liability in the financial information. 

ii. Capital commitments: 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not 
provided for amount to  44,107.19 lakhs (2021:  28,553.65 lakhs) 

iii. Other financial assets: 

The Company had paid an advance of  2,699.85 lakhs for the transfer and assignment 
of the leasehold rights, title and interest in, all that piece and parcel of land admeasuring 
34,873 square meters forming part of larger plot 1/2 Trans Thane Creek Industrial Area 
situated in Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City at Village Koperkhairane, MIDC 
Industrial Area, Trans Creek, Greater Mumbai of Reliance Realty Limited (�RRL�) in 
July 2017. Due to the non-fulfillment of certain conditions precedent by the other party, 
the Company had, on 23 May 2019, filed a petition under Section 9 of the Arbitration 
and Conciliation Act, 1996, with the Hon�ble Bombay High Court against RRL inter-
alia seeking injunctive reliefs. The Hon�ble High Court was pleased to pass an order 
recording the understanding between the parties that RRL will not deal with or 
otherwise create any third party interest in any manner whatsoever in respect of the 
subject property until further orders.   
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35. Contingent liabilities and commitments: (Continued)

iii. Other financial assets: (Continued) 

This order has been extended from time to time and continues to operate. The Company 
has also commenced the arbitration proceedings against RRL in September 2019 and 
submitted the claim to the Arbitral Tribunal. The matter is presently pending with 
Arbitral Tribunal. Based on the legal opinion, the management is confident that the 
Company has a reasonably good case on merits for recovery of its dues.  

Due to the ongoing litigation, there will be a delay in collection and hence the same is 
classified as non-current.   

36. Micro and small enterprises 

Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been 
identified on the basis of information collected by the Management:       

(  in lakhs) 
 As at 

31 March 2022 
As at 

31 March 2021 
a. Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 
the accounting year 

- 391.71 

b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 
of the accounting year 

- 20.30 

c. The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 

15,190.42 13,309.54 

d. The amount of interest due and payable for the year 27.22 20.30 
e. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
the accounting year 

- - 

f. The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid 

- - 

37. Cash settled Restricted Share Units 

Cash-settled RSU (Restricted Share Units) are granted to directors as 50% fees towards 
compensation with respect to their appointments and attendance for the board and committee 
meetings. Each grant is subject to the retention condition of the grant and is exercisable during 
the annual two-week exercise period. The retention condition requires 50% of the units of 
each grant to be retained by the Director up to the earlier of 4 years from the start date of each 
grant or one year after he ceases to be a Director. 

For the period 19 October 2016 to 31 March 2018, the RSU granted were 77,210 units, for the 
period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 the RSU granted are 64,520 units, for the period 1 April 
2019 to 31 March 2020 the RSU granted are 88,290 units, for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 
March 2021 the RSU granted are 88,290 units and for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 
2022 the RSU granted are 88,290 units 

The units are granted from the 50% fees payable to the directors and balance is to be settled 
in cash. 
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37. Cash settled Restricted Share Units (Continued)

The initial price for each grant is set at  100 per RSUP unit. During each exercise period, a 
�final value� will be determined for each unit of the respective grant based on  100 adjusted 
by the compounded portfolio shareholders� return relative to the initial unit price at the start 
date of each grant up to the valuation date.  For any RSUP unit exercised, its �final value� will 
be payable in cash to the Directors. 

The key assumptions applied in the estimate of fair values are as follows: 

Year of Grant Grant 2022 Grant 2021 Grant 2020 Grant 2019 Grant 2018 

Fair value at 31 March 2022 140.77 191.75 244.52 290.41 344.93 

Expected volatility 30.20% 30.20% 30.20% 30.20% 30.20% 

Risk free return 6.47% 6.26% 5.98% 5.62% 5.19% 

Expected remaining life 6 years 5 years 4 years 3 years 2 years 

 
For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021 

Number of 
options 

Weighted average 
exercise price ( ) 

Number of 
options 

Weighted average 
exercise price ( ) 

Outstanding at beginning of 
the year 

310,620 187.30 227,560 151.73 

Granted during the year 88,290 140.77 88,290 136.22 

Forfeited during the year 11,920 173.71 5,230 127.45 

Exercised during the year - - - - 

Outstanding at the end of the 
year   

386,990 237.83 310,620 187.30 
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38. Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company  
  

 (  in lakhs) 

As at 31 March 2022 

Sr. 
No. 

Relevant 
Line Item 

in the 
Balance 

Sheet 

Description 
of item of 
Property 

Gross 
carrying 

value  

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether title deed 
holder is a 

promoter, director 
or relative of 

promoter/director 
or employee of 

promoter/director 

Property 
held since 
which date 

Reasons for 
not being 

held in the 
name of the 
Company 

1 Right-of-use 
assets 

Building 10,103.65 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 1 July 2016 Regulatory 
approval 
pending 

2 Right-of-use 
assets 

Building 12,925.29 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 1 August 
2016 

Regulatory 
approval 
pending 

3 Right-of-use 
assets 

Building 16,142.24 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 1 September 
2016 

Regulatory 
approval 
pending 

4 PPE Building 18,592.72 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 1 December 
2021 

Sale 
agreement 
in progress 

  
 

Total 57,763.90         

 
(  in lakhs) 

As at 31 March 2021 

Sr. 
No. 

Relevant 
Line Item 

in the 
Balance 

Sheet 

Description 
of item of 
Property 

Gross 
carrying 

value  

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether title deed 
holder is a 

promoter, director 
or relative of 

promoter/director 
or employee of 

promoter/director 

Property 
held since 
which date 

Reasons for 
not being 

held in the 
name of the 
Company 

1 Right-of-use 
assets 

Building 10,103.65 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 1 July 2016 Regulatory 
approval 
pending 

2 Right-of-use 
assets 

Building 12,925.29 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 1 August 
2016 

Regulatory 
approval 
pending 

3 Right-of-use 
assets 

Building 16,142.24 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 1 September 
2016 

Regulatory 
approval 
pending 

4 Right-of-use 
assets 

Building 13,645.81 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 7 January 
2021 

Agreement 
in progress 

5 Right-of-use 
assets 

Land 23,399.57 Tata 
Communication 

Limited 

Promoter 13 September 
2019 

Agreement 
in progress 

    Total 76,216.56   
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39. Financial ratios 

S. 
No. 

Financial ratio As at 31 
March 2022 

As at 31 
March 2021 

Variance Reason for variance 

1. Current ratio 0.86 0.63 37% Previous year accruals 
settled/reversed in FY 21-22 

2. Debt equity ratio  2.19 4.66 -53% Additional equity infusion in FY 
21-22 

3. Debt service coverage 
ratio 

1.61 0.93 72% Increase in profit in FY 21-22 

4. Return on equity ratio 14.36% -10.81% 233% (i) Additional equity infusion in 
FY 21-22 
(ii) Increase in profit in FY 21-22 
 

5. Inventory turnover ratio NA NA -  
6. Trade receivables 

turnover ratio (in days) 
16.71 29.87 -44% Higher collections as compared to 

previous year 
7. Trade payables turnover 

ratio (in days) 
114.28 146.77 -22%  

8. Net capital turnover 
ratio 

13.41 3.53 280% Additional equity infusion in FY 
21-22 

9. Net profit ratio 10.56% -5.84% 281% Increase in profit in FY 21-22 & 
reversal of provision for DOT 
license 

10. Return on capital 
employed  

7.31% 7.13% 2%  

11. Return on investment NA NA -  

 

1. Current ratio: Current assets / Current liabilities 
2. Debt equity ratio: (Total debt / Shareholders equity) 

a. Total debt = Borrowings + Lease liabilities 
3. Debt service coverage ratio: (Earnings available for debt service) / Debt service 

a. Earnings available for debt service = Profit / (Loss) for the year + Depreciation and 
amortisation expense + Finance cost 

b. Debt service = Interest payment + Lease payment + Loan repayment 
4. Return on equity ratio: Profit / (Loss) for the year / Average shareholders equity * 100 
5. Inventory turnover ratio:  Cost of good sales or sales / Average inventory 

a. Average inventory = (Opening + Closing balance) / 2 
6. Trade receivables turnover ratio: Revenue from operations / Average accounts receivable. 

Accounts receivable includes provision for loss allowance.  
7. Trade payables turnover ratio: Operating expense / Average accounts payable 

a. Operating expenses = Operating and other expense + Employee benefit expense - 
Performance linked incentive - Cash settled incentive (AUP) - Impairment loss 
recognised/(reversed) under expected credit loss model  

b. Accounts payable = Trade payables + Compensated absences and gratuity liability + 
RSUP liability 

8. Net capital turnover ratio: Revenue from operations / Working capital (-ve sign ignored) 
a. Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities 

9. Net profit ratio: Profit / (Loss) for the year / Revenue from operations * 100 
10. Return on capital employed: EBIT / capital employed * 100 

a. EBIT = Profit / (Loss) before tax + Finance cost 
b. Capital employed = Borrowings + Shareholders equity + Lease liabilities 

11. Return on investment: {MV(T1) � MV(T0) � Sum [C(t)]}/{MV(T0) + Sum [W(t) * C(t)]} 
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40. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (�Intermediaries�) with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified 
by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any 
fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on 
behalf of the Company (�Ultimate Beneficiaries�) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the �Ultimate Beneficiaries�. 

41. Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Company 

The Company has taken into account the possible impacts if any of COVID-19 in preparation 
of the financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of liquidity and going 
concern assumption, recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on 
revenues and impact on leases. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different 
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results and the Company will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 

42. Approval of financial statements 

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 1 June 2022.  

 
43. Previous year�s figures have been regrouped/rearranged where necessary to confirm to current 

year�s classification/ disclosure        

As per our report of even date attached.       

 
For B S R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants STT Global Data Centres India Private Limited 
Firm�s Registration No : 101248W/W-100022  
  
  
  
Glenn D�souza Sumit Mukhija Bruno Lopez 
Partner Chief Executive Officer Director 
Membership No: 112554  DIN: 07554875 
   
   
   
 Kabir Ahmed Shakir Bimal Khandelwal 
 Director Chief Financial officer 
 DIN: 03584898  
   
   
Dated: 1 June 2022 Dated: 1 June 2022  
 
 

SUMIT
MUKHIJA
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